
Corporate Resources
Democratic Services

TO COUNCILLOR:

E R Barr
L A Bentley

Miss A R Bond
G A Boulter
J W Boyce

Mrs L M Broadley
F S Broadley

D M Carter (Deputy Mayor)
Mrs K M Chalk

Miss M V Chamberlain
M H Charlesworth

M L Darr
B Dave

R F Eaton
Mrs L Eaton JP

R E Fahey
D A Gamble

Mrs S Z Haq (Mayor)

J Kaufman
Mrs L Kaufman
Dr T K Khong

Mrs H E Loydall
K J Loydall JP
Mrs S B Morris
R E R Morris
R H Thakor

Dear Councillor et al

I hereby SUMMON you to attend an EXTRAORDINARY meeting of the COUNCIL to be held at the 
COUNCIL OFFICES, STATION ROAD, WIGSTON on TUESDAY, 31 OCTOBER 2017 at 6.00 PM 
for the transaction of the business set out in the Agenda below.

Yours faithfully

Council Offices
Wigston
23 October 2017

Anne Court
Chief Executive (Interim)

I T E M  N O . A G E N D A P A G E  N O ’ S

1.  Calling to Order of the Meeting

The meeting of the Council will be called to order to receive Her Worship The 
Mayor and Deputy Mayor.

2.  Apologies for Absence

3.  Declarations of Interest

Members are reminded that any declaration of interest should be made having 
regard to the Members’ Code of Conduct. In particular, Members must make 
clear the nature of the interest and whether it is 'pecuniary' or ‘non-pecuniary'.

4.  Allocation of Vacant Seats on Committees (Political Balance 
Following By-Election)

1 - 7

For more information, please contact:

Democratic Services
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council



Council (Extraordinary)
Tuesday, 31 October 2017

 Printed and published by Democratic Services, Oadby and 
Wigston Borough Council, Council Offices, Station Road, 

Wigston, Leicestershire, LE18 2DR

Council Offices
Station Road, Wigston

Leicestershire 
LE18 2DR

t:  (0116) 257 2643
e:  democratic.services@oadby-wigston.gov.uk



Council 
(Extraordinary)

Tuesday, 31 October 
2017

Matter for 
Information and 

Decision

Title: Allocation of Vacant Seats on Committees 
(Political Balance Following By-Election)

Author(s): Anne Court (Interim Chief Executive)

1. Introduction

To agree changes to proportionality following the recent by-election and to appoint 
accordingly to the vacant seats on those affected Committees, Boards, Panels, Forums 
and Working Groups (collectively hereafter as “Committees”) of the Council.

2. Recommendation(s)

2.1. The changes to proportionality arrangements, as set out at Appendix A, be approved.

2.2. In accordance with the proportionality arrangements, the necessary amendments and 
appointments be made to the memberships of those affected Committees and the 
Members to serve thereon, as set out at Appendix B.

3. Information

3.1. The resignation of Councillor Gurpal S Atwal in July 2017 led to a single vacancy in the 
Oadby Uplands Ward. A by-election was held on 21 September 2017 which saw the 
election of the candidate for the Liberal Democrats, Councillor Lily Kaufman. 

3.2. As a result, there are vacant seats on some Committees of the Council (as set out at 
Appendix B) due to the shift in the political balance of the Council following this by-
election (as set out at Appendix A) as summarised at paragraph 3.6 of this report.

3.3. The requirements as to political proportionality in the membership of committees are 
embodied in the Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 
1990 made under sections 15 and 16 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.

3.4. It is a statutory requirement that where a relevant authority has a membership 
divided into different political groups, then the decision-making bodies on the Council 
must be proportional to the overall make-up of the Council. The Monitoring Officer has 
a statutory responsibility for ensuring the Council implements proportionality correctly.

3.5. In implementing proportionality correctly, consideration must be given to the following 
four principles as far as is reasonable practicable:

i. all the seats are not allocated to the same political group;
ii. the majority of the seats go to the political group in the majority on the full 

Council;
iii. subject to the above two principles, the total number of seats on the ordinary 

committees of the Authority are allocated to each political group in the same 
proportion as the group’s representation on the full Council; and

iv. subject to the above three principles, the number of seats on each committee are 
allocated to each political group in the same proportion as the group’s 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



representation on the Council.

3.6. In summary, the following amendments to the memberships of the following affected 
Committees as a result of the recent by-election are hereby proposed:

Variation (+/-)

Li
be

ra
l 

D
em

oc
ra

t

Co
ns

er
va

tiv
e

La
bo

ur

In
de

pe
nd

en
t

Policy, Finance and Development Committee +1 NC -1 NC
Service Delivery Committee +1 NC -1 NC
Development Control Committee +1 NC -1 NC
Appeals Panel +1 NC -1 NC

NC = No change    

No. of Members

To
ta

l

Li
be

ra
l 

D
em

oc
ra

t

Co
ns

er
va

tiv
e

In
de

pe
nd

en
t

Policy, Finance and Development Committee 15 11 3 1
Service Delivery Committee 15 11 3 1
Development Control Committee 13 10 2 1
Appeals Panel 17 13 3 1

3.7. The appointment of one Member from the Liberal Democrats is proposed to fill the 
single vacancies arising on each of the abovementioned Committees.

Background Documents:

Local Government and Housing Act 1989
Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990 and 1991
The Constitution of the Council
Declaration of Result of Poll for Oadby Uplands By-Election held 21 September 2017

E-mail:  samuel.ball@oadby-wigston.gov.uk Tel:  (0116) 257 2643

Page 2



Implications | Allocation of Vacant Seats on Committees (Political Balance…)

Finance

Stephen Hinds
(Director of Finance and 
Transformation / Section 151 
Officer)

There are no financial implications.

Legal

Dave Gill
(Deputy Monitoring Officer)

Failure to review the proportionality arrangements and 
appoint to the Council’s Committees accordingly will see the 
Council failing in its duties as set out in the the Local 
Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 
1990 and Local Government and Housing Act 1989.

Corporate Risk(s) (CR) Political Dynamics (CR3)

As set out in the report.
Regulatory Governance (CR6)

Anne Court
(Interim Chief Executive)

As set out in the report.
Corporate Priorities (CP) Not Applicable

Anne Court
(Interim Chief Executive)
Vision & Values (V) Not Applicable
Anne Court
(Interim Chief Executive)
Equalities & Equality 
Assessment(s) (EA)

There are no equalities implications.

Not Applicable (EA) Anne Court
(Interim Chief Executive)

Page 3



APPENDIX A

1 The Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990, SI 1990/1553
≈  Figure equal to the nearest whole number.

Eligible Member Representation by Political Group Before By-Election1

Liberal Democrat
(19/26) = 73%

Conservative
(5/26) = 19%

Labour
(1/26) = 4%

Independent
(1/26) = 4%Committee

Membership Members ≈ Members ≈ Members ≈ Members ≈
26 19.00 19 4.94 5 1.00 1 1.00 1
25 18.25 18 4.75 5 1.00 1 1.00 1
24 17.52 18 4.56 5 0.96 1 0.96 1
23 16.79 17 4.37 4 0.92 1 0.92 1
22 16.06 16 4.18 4 0.88 1 0.88 1
21 15.33 15 3.99 4 0.84 1 0.84 1
20 14.60 15 3.8 4 0.80 1 0.80 1
19 13.87 14 3.61 4 0.76 1 0.76 1
18 13.14 13 3.42 3 0.72 1 0.72 1
17 12.41 12 3.23 3 0.68 1 0.68 1
16 11.68 12 3.04 3 0.64 1 0.64 1
15 10.95 11 2.85 3 0.60 1 0.60 1
14 10.22 10 2.66 3 0.56 1 0.56 1
13 9.49 9 2.47 2 0.52 1 0.52 1
12 8.76 9 2.28 2 0.48 0 0.48 0
11 8.03 8 2.09 2 0.44 0 0.44 0
10 7.30 7 1.90 2 0.40 0 0.40 0
9 6.57 7 1.71 2 0.36 0 0.36 0
8 5.84 6 1.52 2 0.32 0 0.32 0
7 5.11 5 1.33 1 0.28 0 0.28 0
6 4.38 4 1.14 1 0.24 0 0.24 0
5 3.65 4 0.95 1 0.20 0 0.20 0
4 2.92 3 0.76 1 0.16 0 0.16 0
3 2.19 2 0.57 1 0.12 0 0.12 0
2 1.46 1 0.38 0 0.08 0 0.08 0
1 0.73 1 0.19 0 0.04 0 0.04 0

Page 4



APPENDIX A

2 The Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990, SI 1990/1553
≈  Figure equal to the nearest whole number.

Eligible Member Representation by Political Group After By-Election2

Liberal Democrat
(20/26) = 77%

Conservative
(5/26) = 19%

Independent
(1/26) = 4%Committee

Membership Members ≈ Members ≈ Members ≈
26 20.02 20 4.94 5 1.00 1
25 19.25 19 4.75 5 1.00 1
24 18.48 18 4.56 5 0.96 1
23 17.71 18 4.37 4 0.92 1
22 16.94 17 4.18 4 0.88 1
21 16.17 16 3.99 4 0.84 1
20 15.40 15 3.8 4 0.80 1
19 14.63 15 3.61 4 0.76 1
18 13.86 14 3.42 3 0.72 1
17 13.09 13 3.23 3 0.68 1
16 12.32 12 3.04 3 0.64 1
15 11.55 12 2.85 3 0.60 1
14 10.78 11 2.66 3 0.56 1
13 10.01 10 2.47 2 0.52 1
12 9.24 9 2.28 2 0.48 0
11 8.47 8 2.09 2 0.44 0
10 7.70 8 1.90 2 0.40 0
9 6.93 7 1.71 2 0.36 0
8 6.16 6 1.52 2 0.32 0
7 5.39 5 1.33 1 0.28 0
6 4.62 5 1.14 1 0.24 0
5 3.85 4 0.95 1 0.20 0
4 3.08 3 0.76 1 0.16 0
3 2.31 2 0.57 1 0.12 0
2 1.54 2 0.38 0 0.08 0
1 0.77 1 0.19 0 0.04 0

Page 5



APPENDIX B

Policy, Finance and Development Committee (15)
Liberal Democrat (11) Conservative (3) Independent (1)
L A Bentley E R Barr Dr T K Khong
G A Boulter B Dave
J W Boyce R E Fahey
Mrs K M Chalk
M L Darr
R F Eaton
D A Gamble (Vice-Chair)
J Kaufman
R E R Morris
Mrs S B Morris (Chair)
Vacant

Service Delivery Committee (15) 

Liberal Democrat (11) Conservative (3) Independent (1)
L A Bentley Miss A R Bond Dr T K Khong
G A Boulter (Chair) R E Fahey
J W Boyce R H Thakor
F S Broadley (Vice-Chair)
Mrs L M Broadley
D M Carter
Miss M V Chamberlain
Mrs L Eaton
Mrs S Z Haq
K J Loydall
Vacant

Development Control Committee (13) 1 
Liberal Democrat (10) Conservative (2) Independent (1)
L A Bentley (Chair) B Dave Dr T K Khong
G A Boulter R E Fahey
F S Broadley
Mrs L M Broadley (Vice-Chair)

1 ‘No Member may sit on this Committee until he or she has undergone basic training on the law and procedure 
relating to the functions of the Committee’, The Constitution of Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, Terms of 
Reference of the Development Control Committee (Oct 2015 edn), pg 204

Page 6



APPENDIX B

D M Carter
D A Gamble
J Kaufman
Mrs H E Loydall
R E R Morris
Vacant

Appeals Panel (17) 2

Liberal Democrat (13) Conservative (3) Independent (1)
G A Boulter E R Barr Dr T K Khong
J W Boyce B Dave
Mrs L M Broadley R E Fahey
D M Carter
M H Charlesworth
M L Darr
Mrs L Eaton
R F Eaton
D A Gamble
Mrs S Z Haq
J Kaufman
Mrs S B Morris
Vacant

2 ‘No Member may sit on this Panel until he or she has undergone basic training on the law and procedure 
relating to the functions of the Panel’, The Constitution of Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, Terms of 
Reference of the Appeals Panel (Oct 2015 edn), pg 231

Page 7


	Agenda
	4 Allocation of Vacant Seats on Committees (Political Balance Following By-Election)
	Appendix A - Political Balance Following By-Election
	Appendix B - Allocation of Vacant Seats on Committees


